IN THE MISSISSIPPI COURT OF APPEALS

NO. 2010-CP-00744-Charles Pegues V. StateMiss.

FILED

CHARLES E. PEGUES

JUN 2 4 2010
OFFICE OF THE CLERK
SUPREME COURT
COURT OF APPEALS

APPELLANT

VS.

STATE OF MISSISSIPPI

APPELLEE

BRIEF OF APPELLANT

By Mr. Charles Pegues #R4082

MR. CHARLES E. PEGUES #R4082 PETITIONER PRO SE DCF 3800 COUNTY RD 540 GREENWOOD MS. 38930

CERTIFICATE OF INTERESTED PERSONS

The Undersign Pro SE Appellant certifies that the following Listed Persons have an interest in the Outcome of the case:

Mr. Charles E. Pegues	Pro SE Appellant
Hon. Jim Hood.	Miss. St. Atty General
Hon. Andrew K. Howorth	Cir. Ct. Judge Trial Court

Respectfully Submitted By:

STATEMENT OF ISSUES

 The Indictment fails to state venue of offense charged rendering it Fatally Defective.

2. Appellants Guilty Plea was not Freely Voluntarily, and Intelligently made where He was denied effective assistance of Counsel when Counsel informed and allowed Him to Plea Guilty to a "Defected Indictment" and due to being defective, Trial Counsel deprived Appellant of a Fair Trail for failure to Demurrer to the alleged Indictment

STATEMENT OF THE CASE

On the 10th Day of January, 2005, in the Circuit Court of Lafayette County Miss. Appellant entered a Plea of Guilty to a Charge Offense, Possession of a Controlled Substance, A violation of M.C.A 41-29-139. Subsequently Appellant was sentence to serve a term of (16) sixteen years in the Custody of the Miss. Department of Corrections. Sentenced to be served Pur. M.C.A 99-19-81. Pursuant to the instant Action, Appellant Maintains that His Conviction is Illegal. An of Constitutional Error...

ARGUMENT

According to Established Law, "The Venue of the Crime Charged is as Necessary to be set out in the indictment as any of the other Fundamentals of the Offense. The Indictment Must Give... Notice... Notice of the Place where it is Alleged that the Offense was committed.

Evans vs. State, 144 Miss. 1,108 SO. 725 (Miss 1926)

An Examination of the Indictment, Sub Judice Evidence a Failure to cite the Venue of the Crime Charged. See Exhibit A

Art. 111 26 Miss. Const. (1890) Requires that Adequate notice be given As to the Place Where Such Crime is Allege to Have been Committed. Failure to Accord is a Fundamental Error.

This Error Evidences Appellant's lack of knowledge As to where the Allege Crime Occurred.

OUR LAW TEACHES THAT A PLEA OF GUILTY IS BINDING IN A

DEFENDANT ONLY IF IT IS ENTERED VOLUNTARILY AND INTELLIGENTLY.

MYERS V. STATE, 583 SO. 2d 174,177 (MISS. 1991). APPELLANT CONTENDS

THAT HIS PLEA HAS NOT INTELLIGENTLY MADE DUE TO INADQUATE

NOTICE OF VENUE. VITTION VS. STATE 556 SO. 2d 1062, 1064 (MISS. 1990);

ART. 111 14, 26, 27.

APPELLANT SEEKS RELIEF FOR FAILURE TO PROVIDE FUNDAMENTAL NOTICE, VIA INDICTMENT.

Appellant Charles E. Pegues guilty Plea was not Freely, Voluntarily, and

Intelligently made where he was denied his (6th) Amendment Right Under the United

States Constitution to effective assistance of Counsel where Trial Counsel advised and
allowed Him to Plea guilty to a "Defected Indictment"... Such shown Unprofessional

Advice resulted in Substantial gravity that resulted in the Plea to an indictment that lack
subject matter Jurisdiction where it is required in Fundamental Law that an indictment
must have jurisdiction of the charge and the Person Article 3 section 27 (1890); State V.

Sansome, 133 Miss. 428, 97 SO, 753 (1923).

The Standard of Review for a claim of ineffective assistance of Counsel was established by the United States Supreme Court in Strickland V. Washington 66 US. 668: 104 S.CT 2052: 80 L. Ed. 2d. 674 (1984)

Cited in Moore V. State, 676 SO. 2d 244 (Miss 1996).

Under Strickland, I order to establish ineffective assistance of Counsel, Appellant must demonstrate that His Counsel's Performance was deficient and that this deficiency deprived Him of a fair trial Strickland, 466 U.S at 689; 104 S.CT. 2052: 8OL.Ed.2d.674 (1984). This test applies equally to guilty Pleas and Jury trials Hannah V. State; 943 SO. 2d, 2027 (Miss 2006). It was Unsound trial strategy for Appellant's Counsel to fail o demurrer to the indictment where it is required in Fundamental law that an indictment must have Jurisdiction of the Charge and the Person, Article 3 section 27 (1890); State V. Sansome, 133 Miss. 428, 97 SO. 753 (1923). These failures along with Counsel's overall failure to advocate Appellants cause amounted to deficient performance. The erroneous advice, coupled with Counsel's failure to Conscientiously fulfill His adversarial Role, deprived Appellant Charles E. Pegues, of His Constitutional Right to effective assistance of Counsel. Appellant was Prejudiced by this ineffectiveness because had it not been for "Counsels Errors", Appellant would not have entered this plea of guilty to the alleged charges in this alleged Indictment. Appellant's Counsel was in effective, Counsels overall Performance was deficient, and this deficiency deprived the Appellant Charles E. Pegues of a Fair Trial for failure to Demurrer this indictment... Appellant has met both standards of Review for a claim of ineffective assistance of Counsel as set forth by the United States Supreme Court in Strickland, 466, US 668: 104 S. CT 2052: 80 L. Ed 2d 674 (1984).

UNDER ART.111 27 MISS. CONST. (1890) AND M.C.A. 99-7-1 THE

CIRCUIT COURT OBTAINS SUBJECT MATTER JURISDICTION OVER A

CRIMINAL DEFENDANT WHEN THE DEFENDANT IS SERVER WITH AN

INDICTMENT. WHEN AS HERE, AN INDICTMENT IS CHALLENGED AS

DEFECTIVE; THE JURISDICTION OF THE CIRCUIT COURT TO HEAR THE

MATTER AND IMPOSE A SENTENCE IS CALLED INTO QUESTION. cf. JENSEN

V. STATE, 798 SO. 2d 383, 385 (MISS. 2001). THIS COURT SHALL CONDUCT A de

BOYO REVIEW.

UPON SUCH A REVIEW, IT IS AND/OR SHALL BE CLEAR THAT TRIAL COURT HAD NO PROPER JURISDICTION TO ENTER CONVICTION AND SENTENCE DUE TO THE DEFECTIVE INDICTMENT.

OUR LAW IS THAT A TRIAL COURT'S DENIAL OF POST-CONVICTION

RELIEF WILL NOT BE REVERSED ABSENT A FINDING THAT THE TRIAL

COURT'S DECISION WAS CLEARLY ERRONEOUS...BUCK V. STATE, 838 SO.

2d 256,258 (MISS. 2003). IN THE INSTANT CASE, THE COURTS DECISION WAS

TID	T)	\sim	CTT	\sim 1	TO
ER	K	. 1	VР.	un	· · ·

CONCLUSION

APPELLANT PRAYS THIS HONORABLE COURT REVERSE THE LOWER
COURT DECISION AND FOR THE REASONS STATED HEREIN, DISMSS
THE INDICTMENT WITH PREJUDICE.