IN THE COURT OF APPEALS OF THE STATE OF MISSISSIPPI

CHARLES E. PEGUES

APPELLANT

VS.

NO. 2010-CP-0744

STATE OF MISSISSIPPI

APPELLEE

BRIEF FOR THE APPELLEE

APPELLEE DOES NOT REQUEST ORAL ARGUMENT

JIM HOOD, ATTORNEY GENERAL

BY: JOHN R. HENRY

SPECIAL ASSISTANT ATTORNEY GENERAL

MISSISSIPPI BAR NO.

OFFICE OF THE ATTORNEY GENERAL POST OFFICE BOX 220 JACKSON, MS 39205-0220 TELEPHONE: (601) 359-3680

STATEMENT OF THE CASE

This is an appeal against an Order of the Circuit Court of Lafayette County, Mississippi in which relief on the prisoner's motion in post - conviction relief was denied.

STATEMENT OF FACTS

The prisoner and another were indicted for possession of 6.7 grams of cocaine with the intention of distributing, transferring or selling same, the indictment being filed on 20 September 2004. (R. Vol. 1, pp. 46 - 47). On 10 January 2005, the prisoner signed a "Petition to Enter a Plea of Guilty," in which he indicated that he wished to enter a plea of guilty to the felony of possession of more than two grams but less than ten grams of cocaine. (R. Vol. 1, pp. 22 - 27). On that same day the petition was presented to the Circuit Court, and, after the usual colloquy, the prisoner's plea was accepted, and he was convicted and sentenced (R. Vol. 1, pp. 28 - 44).

On 7 January 2010, the prisoner filed a petition for the writ of habeas corpus, in which he sought to have his conviction and sentence set aside. The ground asserted was that he was serving an illegal sentence, the sentence supposedly being illegal because the indictment exhibited against him was allegedly defective for having failed to allege the venue of the offense set out in it. The usual ineffective assistance of counsel claim was raised as well, but this claim was merely an assertion that counsel had been ineffective for having failed to raise the alleged defect of the indictment. It was also alleged that the plea was involuntary because the indictment was defective. (R. Vol. 1, pp. 1 - 21).

The Circuit Court, treating the prisoner's filing as one in post - conviction relief, denied relief without an evidentiary hearing, this by Order filed on 22 March 2010. (R. Vol. 1, pg. 60). The prisoner then filed his notice of appeal on 30 March 2010. (R. Vol. 1, pg. 55).

STATEMENT OF ISSUES

DID THE CIRCUIT COURT ERR IN DENYING RELIEF ON THE PRISONER'S MOTION IN POST - CONVICTION RELIEF WITHOUT AN EVIDENTIARY HEARING?

SUMMARY OF ARGUMENT

THAT THE CIRCUIT COURT DID NOT ERR IN DENYING RELIEF ON THE PRISONER'S MOTION IN POST - CONVICTION RELIEF WITHOUT AN EVIDENTIARY HEARING

ARGUMENT

THAT THE CIRCUIT COURT DID NOT ERR IN DENYING RELIEF ON THE PRISONER'S MOTION IN POST - CONVICTION RELIEF WITHOUT AN EVIDENTIARY HEARING

A Circuit Court may deny relief on a motion in post - conviction relief without an evidentiary hearing where it plainly appears from the face of the motion and the prior proceedings in the case that the movant is not entitled to relief. Miss. Code Ann. Section 99-39-11(2) (Supp. 2009). This

Court will not disturb a Circuit Court's denial of relief absent a showing that the Circuit Court was clearly in error. Questions of law, however, are reviewed *de novo*. *E.g. Simmons v. State*, 784 So.2d 985, 987 (Miss. Ct. App. 2001).

In the case at bar, the prisoner asserted in his pleadings in the Circuit Court that the indictment against him failed to allege the venue in which he committed his most recent offense. Because of this alleged failure, he asserted that his conviction was void and that the sentence imposed upon him was an illegal sentence. The ineffective assistance of counsel claim consists of a claim that the prisoner's attorney failed to attack the indictment on the basis of this alleged defect.

First of all, we note that the prisoner filed his motion in January, 2010 (R. Vol. 1, pg. 1) and that he was convicted and sentenced on 10 January 2005 (R. Vol. 1, pg. 28). The prisoner had three years from 10 January 2005 in which to file his motion in post - conviction relief, Miss. Code Ann. Section 99-39-5(2) (Supp. 2009). His failure to file in a timely fashion works a bar to his claim. While the prisoner did assert that his sentence was an illegal sentence, in point of fact and law, his sentence of sixteen years as an habitual offender upon his conviction of possession of cocaine in an amount between two and ten grams was authorized by law and was not "illegal." Miss. Code Ann. Sections 41-29-139(c)(1)(C) (Rev. 2009); 99-19-81 (Rev. 2007). There is no exception to the statute of limitations applicable in the case at bar. The decision of the Circuit Court to deny relief on the prisoner's motion should be affirmed on account of the prisoner's failure to file his motion within the time by law permitted.

The indictment exhibited against the prisoner in the case at bar does appear to have omitted statements concerning the county and State in which the prisoner committed his most recent offense.¹

We will surmise that the failure to include these statements was no more significant than a simple oversight by the drafter of the indictment. Apparently, neither the trial court nor the defense

(R. Vol. 1, pp. 46 - 47). Those statements are to be included in indictments under URCCC 7.06. However, it does not appear that there was any challenge made against the indictment on this ground, and it is clear that the prisoner did enter a valid plea of guilty to the indictment. The question presented by this appeal, assuming for argument that the appeal is properly before the Court, is whether the failure to include statements concerning the county and State in the indictment are defects of such a nature as to prevent a circuit court of this State from acquiring jurisdiction of the cause involved in the indictment. If so, then any subsequent judgment entered would be void, and void for reasons having nothing to do with the grounds available in post - conviction relief. If not, though, then the failure to include such statements should be seen as defects which may be waived by a valid guilty plea, and were so waived in the case at bar.

The entry of a valid guilty plea works a waiver of all non - jurisdictional defects. Specifically, the entry of such a plea works of a waiver except where (1) the indictment fails to allege an essential element of the crime charged or (2) where the circuit court was without subject matter jurisdiction. *Jefferson v. State*, 556 So.2d 1016, 1019 (Miss. 1989).

In the case at bar, the indictment sufficiently set out the offense charged against the prisoner.² The Circuit Court clearly had subject matter jurisdiction regarding the charge set out in the indictment and its lesser - included offense. Art. 6, Section 156, Miss. Const. (1890); Miss. Code Ann. Section 99-19-5 (Rev. 2007). Consequently, neither of the two exceptions set out in *Jefferson* is applicable here. While the prisoner appears to rely upon *Evans v. State*, 144 Miss. 1, 108 So. 725

attorney noticed it either.

² The prisoner, through a plea bargain with the State, entered a plea to a possession charge, which would have been a lesser - included offense. The felony alleged in the indictment was properly alleged, though, and the prisoner makes no claim otherwise.

(Miss. 1926), for the proposition that the failure to allege venue in an indictment is a fatal defect, in that case it was clear that a proper and timely objection had been made to the supposed defect. The error committed by the trial court there was in failing to enter an order allowing an amendment to cure the alleged defect, or enter same upon its minutes.

On the other hand, the Court in *Evans* noted that an error in an indictment in this regard is an amendable one. The point is significant for two reasons. First, since such a defect is curable on proper motion by the prosecuting attorney, rather than one that only a grand jury could correct, any such error is not fatal. Any such defect cannot be jurisdictional in nature. Secondly, it can be drawn from the opinion that the failure to object to such an defect in an indictment works a waiver of the issue. We submit that the issue was waived in the case at bar by the failure to object, and by entering the plea of guilty.

Having said this, we do not think it can be reasonably said that counsel for the prisoner was ineffective for having failed to demur to the indictment. The very most that would have come of a demurrer or some other objection would have been an amendment to the indictment. And even had it been necessary to put the case again before a grand jury to correct such an omission, which it was not, this would have gained the prisoner nothing. The failure to demur or otherwise object to the indictment did not compromise some defense, and the prisoner points to nothing to demonstrate some prejudice to his case. That perhaps the prisoner would not have pleaded guilty to an indictment which contained an inadvertent omission of a statement of the county in which the offense occurred hardly suggests that he would not have entered such a plea to an indictment that did contain that statement.

The indictment in the case at bar apparently failed to include a statement concerning the county in which the offense occurred. The indictment should have contained this statement. We

submit, though, that the prisoner's valid and effective guilty plea worked a waiver of the issue. The error was in the paperwork, not in the substance of things, and though regrettable, there is simply nothing to show that the prisoner was injured or in some way prejudiced by it. The prisoner freely admitted his guilt. The oversight was no more than a technical glitch.

CONCLUSION

The Order denying relief on the prisoner's motion in post - conviction relief should be affirmed.